
MINUTES 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 

of the 

Nashville Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

November 14, 2010 

 
Attendees:  Mayor Rogers Anderson, Mr. Paul Ballard (for Vice‐Mayor Diane Neighbors), Mr. Kirk Bednar 
(for Mayor Paul Webb), Mayor Ernest Burgess, Mayor John Coombs, Mayor Philip Craighead, Mr. Corbin 
Davis, Ms. Deborah Fleming, Mayor Scott Foster, Ms. Denise Geminden (for Mayor Ken Wilber), Mayor 
Jo Ann Graves, Mr. Gerald Herman (for Mayor Michael Arnold), Executive Anthony Holt, Ms. Shauna 
Hughey (for Mayor Karl Dean), Mayor Randall Hutto, Mr. Marlin Keel (for Mayor Ed Hagerty), Mr. Toks 
Omishakin (for Commissioner John Schroer), Mr. Tim Roach, Mr. Eric Stuckey (for Mayor Ken Moore) 
 
 
Approve October 17, 2012 Meeting Minutes 
 
Mayor Rogers Anderson, Chair, opened the meeting at 9:07 a.m.  Mayor Jo Ann Graves moved to 
approve the October 17, 2012 minutes with Mr. Tim Roach seconding.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Public Comment 
 
Ms. Margo Chambers noted that her comments at the October meeting were left off of the minutes on 
the website and she wants them to be included.  [Point of clarification: all public comments made at 
Executive Board meetings are recorded in the official minutes held at the offices of the Nashville Area 
MPO and are available by request.  The typed minutes distributed with the Board packet include only a 
summary of the board discussion and public remarks]. 
 
 
MPO Chair’s Report 

a) Recap of Regional Symposium on Implementing Transit 
Mayor Anderson said that the symposium was excellent and thanked the staff for their hard 
work and really appreciated the array of noted speakers. 
 
Mr. Paul Ballard said that the symposium with its mix of speakers was one of the best he had 
ever attended.  Mayor Graves concurred and the quality was unbelievable.  She was particularly 
impressed with the speaker from Raleigh, NC on how to quantify.  One main point she got was 
that you have to sell an idea to understand the financial and fiscal impact. 
 
Mr. Michael Skipper, MPO director, thanked everyone for attending and stated that the video 
and PowerPoint presentations of the speakers is now on the website 
NashvilleMPO.org\symposium 



b) Appointment of Nominating Committee for 2013 Officers 
Mayor Anderson named Mayor Randall Hutto, Mr. Tim Roach, and Executive Anthony Holt to 
the nominating committee.  They will present the slate at the December meeting. 

c) MPO Director’s Annual Evaluation 
Mayor Anderson said that Mr. Skipper’s evaluation is soon.  He said to email either Mayor 
Anderson or Ms. Lou Edwards (Edwards@nashvillempo.org) with any comments (pro or con) 
prior to December 12th. 

d) Major Highway Openings (SR‐840, I‐65) 
Mayor Anderson said that the final section of SR‐840 opened on November 3rd.  He said that it 
has been designated as a scenic highway which will eliminate commercial signs.  He also said 
that the section of I‐65 around Franklin (from SR‐96 to Peytonsville Rd. exit) is to open in a few 
weeks. 

 
 
Endorse Amendments to the FYs 2011‐2015 TIP 

 
Mr. Félix Castrodad, MPO staff, said that the following amendments to the Transportation Improvement 
Program (TIP) require a 21‐day public review and comment period prior to adoption by the Board. More 
information is available at NashvilleMPO.org/plans_programs/tip/. 

 

AMENDMENTS: 
TIP # RTP # Project Name Sponsor Action 

2008-46-041 Consistent Lytle Creek Greenway Murfreesboro Add project to TIP 

2012-16-185 1085-501 Music City Moves 
Metro 
Nashville 

Re-award to MTA 

2011-15-137 1015-309 
Local Bus Service Prev. Maint. & 
Capitalization 

MTA Add funds 

2008-17-021 1015-312 CAD, AVL and ITS MTA Shift funds 

2011-15-148 1015-308 New Maint. and Office Facility (Peterbilt) MTA Add funds, scope 

2009-85-018 1085-319 
SE Corridor Express Bus Service 
Expansion 

RTA Shift funds 

2008-85-091 1085-320 Commuter Rail Prev. Maint. & Capitalization RTA Add funds 

 
Mayor Scott Foster moved to endorse the amendments for public review and comment.  Mr. Paul 
Ballard seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
The schedule for adoption is: 

 11/7 – TCC endorsement 

 11/14 – XB endorsement 

 11/16‐12/10 – Public review and comment period 

 12/5 – First public hearing (TCC) 

 12/12 – Second public hearing / adoption (XB) 
 
 
 



MPO ITS/System Management Grant Program 
 
Mr. Skipper presented information about the call‐for‐projects for the MPO’s ITS/System Management 
Program established by the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan. The FYs 2011‐15 Transportation 
Improvement Program includes $825,000 in MPO Surface Transportation Program (U‐STP) grant funds to 
implement regional projects that improve system operations and performance.   He said that staff 
anticipated recommending awards will in February.  Projects from the entire MPO area will be 
considered, but the priority will be given to those projects in the Nashville Urbanized Area and multi‐
jurisdictional span.  Applications are due on January 14th. 
 
Mayor John Coombs asked if a project like signalization improvement is a possible candidate.  Mr. 
Skipper said yes.  Mayor Coombs said that the location of this project will serve Robertson and Sumner 
counties as well as Davidson.  Mr. Skipper said that there is only a small amount of money available 
through this competition.   
 
Mayor Graves moved to endorse the call for projects.  Mayor Coombs seconded with the motion passing 
unanimously. 
 
The schedule for adoption is: 

 11/14 – Call for Projects Announced 

 1/14 – Application Deadline 

 2/6 – TCC Endorsement of Awards/ TIP Amendment 

 2/20 – XB Endorsement of Awards/ TIP Amendment 

 2/22‐3/18 – Public review and comment period 

 3/6 – First public hearing (TCC) 

 6/20 – Second public hearing / adoption (XB) 
 
 
TDOT Three‐Year Program Priorities for Region  
 
Mr. Skipper said that TDOT has requested the MPO to rank order a list of projects the Department is 
considering for the next 3‐year work program.  This is the second consecutive year that the Department 
has asked the MPO to rank‐order list provided by TDOT.  Last year the MPO ranked projects according to 
the project evaluations conducted for the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan. 
 
Mayor Anderson asked when the priority list is needed.  Mr. Skipper said that approval at the December 
meeting is needed to get the list to TDOT by their requested deadline. 
 
He said the projects on the list had already seen some investment by TDOT and are ready for right‐of‐
way acquisition or construction.  TDOT wants input from the MPO in order to help decide which to move 
forward first.  He said that most of the projects will probably move forward in one form or another over 
the next few years, even if not funded in the upcoming work program.  Mr. Toks Omishakin said that 
was pretty accurate.  He said that shape and form of the project may be different. 



 
Mr. Eric Stuckey asked how much funding is in play.  Mr. Omishakin said that it is about $860M which is 
in different pots and he is not sure how this will play out.  He said that TDOT wants to fund projects that 
are important to the jurisdictions in the MPO.  This process will be done in January.     
 
Mayor Anderson suggested that members review the MPO website to understand the criteria the staff 
used to evaluate projects.  Mr. Skipper said that he would email members of the Board with more 
information about the project evaluation process and staff’s pending recommendation for the priority 
list. 
 
The schedule for adoption is: 

 11/7 – Presentation of candidates to the TCC 

 11/14 – Presentation of candidates to the Board 

 12/5 – TCC endorsement of priorities 

 12/12 – XB endorsement of priorities 
 
 
Department of Transportation Report 
 
Mr. Omishakin said that the MPO directors will meet on December 4th.  This meeting is to help improve 
the relationship between the MPO and TDOT.  TDOT also is trying to streamline processes so projects 
can get built faster.  He also said that TDOT is re‐evaluating projects to see what the best solution is for 
improvement basing decisions on what the MPO proprieties are.  He said that a new system to prioritize 
projects is being developed which will include the use of common sense as one of the factors. 
 
Mr. Roach asked the status of the SR‐109 quarterly management agreement.  Mr. Omishakin said that 
they are waiting for each jurisdiction to pass it before sending the agreement around for signatures. 
 
 
MPO Director’s Report 

 Update on MPO Requests for Proposals for Consulting Services 
Mr. Skipper said that an RFP for the Southeast Area Transportation & Land Use study has been 
issued.  An RFP for General Planning and Modeling for the 2040 RTP will be issued this week. 

 Other comments 
Mr. Skipper reminded project sponsors that staff is reviewing the status of projects in the TIP.  
Projects that fall behind schedule are in jeopardy of losing funding.  
Ms. Leslie Meehan, MPO staff, said that Watertown and Franklin were awarded Safe Routes to 
School funding for bike/ped education and improving a tunnel between a school and 
subdivision, respectively.  She said that there is another round of applications is now open.  She 
said that the grant is for 100% of the project.  No match is required. 
 

 
 



With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:03 a.m. 
 
Date:  ______________________ 
 
___________________________ 
The Honorable Rogers Anderson 
Chairman, MPO Executive Board 
 
___________________________ 
Michael Skipper, AICP, Executive Director 
Secretary, Executive Board 
 




